Al Vanderberg,Assistant Administrator
Kent County

300 Monroe, NW

Grand Rapids, Ml 49503

Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Wednesday, May 24, 2000 — 7:30a.m. — 9:30a.m.
County Administration Building — Board Room

300 Monroe Avenue, NW
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503

AGENDA

L. Call to Order
1. Review and Approval of the minutes of the April 18, 2000

meeting of the CAA Action
III.  Public Comment
IV.  Selection of Secretary/Treasurer Discussion/Action
V. Presentation on Open Meetings Act Information
VI.  Creation of Committees/Committee Appointments Discussion/Action

a. Operations Committee

b. Finance Committee
VII. Budget

a. Presentation of Convention Center and Arena Budgets Information

b. Adoption of SMG Van Andel Arena FY2001 Operating Budget

and Capital Schedules Action
c. Adoption of SMG Grand Center FY2001 Operating Budget
and Capital Schedules Action

d. Presentation of Convention Center Expansion Project Budget Information

e. Adoption of CAA 14-Month Operating/Capital Budget Discussion/Action
VIII. Directors and Officers’ Liability Insurance Action
IX.  Architectural Services Contract Discussion/Action
X. Reports

a. Report of ad-hoc bank committee Information

b. Selection of bookkeeping services Information

c. Financial and bookkeeping policy Information



d. Building Committee Information
e. Contracts Information
f. Monroe Avenue Information

XI. Other Business

XII.  Future Business

Assignment of SMG Contracts

Assignment of City/DDA Contracts

Transfer of Van Andel Arena Liquor License

Competitive Bidding

Permanent Staffing

Process for Selection of Management Firm, effective 7/1/01
Property Insurance

General Liability Insurance

Establish change order approval process

M E@E e A0 OR

XIII. Adjournment

Distribution:
Convention/Arena Authority:

Steve Heacock, Chair
David Frey, Vice-Chair
Birgit Klohs

John Logie

Joe Tomaselli

Lew Chamberlain

Cliff Charles

Staff:

Kurt Kimball, City of Grand Rapids Jim Leach, Kent County

Eric DeLong, City of Grand Rapids Dick Wendt, Legal Counsel
Robert White, City of Grand Rapids Jon Nunn, Grand Action

Bill Cole, City of Grand Rapids Dale Sommers, Grand Action
Dianette Hight, City of Grand Rapids Jim Knack, DDA

Daryl Delabbio, Kent County Rich MacKeigan, SMG

Al Vanderberg, Kent County

Dave Waichum, Kent County



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
April 18, 2000 - Page 1

MINUTES OF THE
GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Tuesday, April 18, 2000

1. Call to Order

The meeting was called to order by the Acting Chair, Mayor John H. Logie, at 12:45
p.m., in the Van Andel Arena Banquet Room.

2 Attendance/Introductions
Members Present:  David Cassard (CVB Nominee) David Frey
Lew Chamberlin (CVB Nominee) Steve Heacock
CIiff Charles (CVB Nominee) Birgit Klohs

Mayor John Logie
Joe Tomaselli

Members Absent: None

Staff/Others: Kurt Kimball Daryl Delabbio Jon Nunn
Eric DeLong Jim Leach Dale Sommers
Bob White County Clerk Terri Land Jim Knack
Bill Cole Mary Beth Hollinrake Dick Wendt
Dianette Hight Rich MacKeigan Jim Gray
City Commissioner Jim Watt Steve Wilson
Jendrasiak Sherri Billington
City Commissioner  Tricia Kimbrough
Rabaut Chris Machuta
Ingrid Scott-Weekley

Mayor Logie welcomed everyone to the Inaugural Meeting of the Grand Rapids-Kent
County Convention/Arena Authority and explained how the Authority was formed under
State legislation.

It was noted that there will be an opportunity for public comment at the end of this
meeting prior to the scheduled Executive Session.

3. Oath of Office & Selection of Two Members

County Clerk Terri Land administered the Oath of Office to David Frey, Steve Heacock,
Birgit Klohs, Mayor John Logie, and Joe Tomaselli.

Nominations were opened for the two open positions on the Authority. Steve Heacock
indicated that he felt David Cassard, Lew Chamberlin and Cliff Charles were all excellent
nominees.



P

Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
April 18, 2000 - Page 2

Steve Heacock, supported by David Frey, nominated Lew Chamberlin and CIiff Charles.
Nominations were then closed. Lew Chamberlin and Cliff Charles were unanimously
elected to serve as Convention/Arena Authority members.

Steve Heacock and Mayor Logie both thanked David Cassard for his interest and
indicated that they assumed he would still be actively involved in this project due to his
role as Chairperson of the Downtown Development Authority.

County Clerk Terri Land administered the Oath of Office to Lew Chamberlin and Clift
Charles.

The terms of office were set by coin toss. Cliff Charles will serve for two years, and Lew
Chamberlin will serve for four years.

4, Bylaws

Steve Heacock reported that the County Commission is recommending the proposed
amendment to the Bylaws which requires personal attendance by Authority members at
regular meetings of the Authority.

Motion: Steve Heacock, supported by David Frey, made a motion to adopt the “Personal
Presence” Amendment to the Convention/Arena Authority Bylaws as presented.

David Frey noted that telecommunications is used often in business today and is
sometimes necessary in order to get all parties together. He is concerned that this
restriction might hinder the timeliness of the Authority’s conduct of business.

Mayor Logie noted that he doesn’t have a strong feeling either way on this but is leaning
toward trying it without the amendment for a time and then maybe considering a change
if it is found to be necessary.

Cliff Charles noted that he is open to trying this, but leaving it open for discussion at a
later date.

The amendment was adopted by a vote of 4 to 3. Birgit Klohs, David Frey and Mayor
Logie voted against the amendment.

Motion: Birgit Klohs, supported by David Frey, moved to adopt the Bylaws of the Grand
Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority as amended. Motion carried.

5. Operating Agreement

Motion: David Frey, supported by Joe Tomaselli, moved to approve the Operating
Agreement as presented. Motion carried.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
April 18,2000 - Page 3

6.

Election of Officers

Steve Heacock stated that the Chair of the Authority is a very important role. It is his
hope that the Authority would support either the Mayor or him as Chairperson for at least
the first year in order to provide for a better liaison with City and County staff who will
be handling most of the actual work in the interim until other staff are in place.

Nominations for the position of Chair were opened.

Mayor Logie, supported by David Frey, nominated Steve Heacock for the position of
Chair.

Nominations were then closed.
Steve Heacock was unanimously elected as Chair.
Nominations for the position of Vice-Chair were opened.

Joe Tomaselli, supported by Birgit Klohs, nominated David Frey for the position of Vice
Chair.

Nominations were then closed.
David Frey was unanimously elected as Vice-Chair.

Dick Wendt explained that the Bylaws provide for filling the offices of both a Secretary
and a Treasurer. This can be one person elected to hold both offices, and these positions
can be filled by someone other than a Board member. He noted that this decision could
be deferred until the next meeting. David Frey questioned whether someone would be
needed in this position before the next meeting for the purpose of executing documents.
Mr. Wendt indicated that the Bylaws provide that any officer can sign documents on
behalf of the Authority. It takes two signatures for checks, and there are two officers
elected at this time.

Following a brief discussion, it was decided to defer a decision on the offices of Secretary
and Treasurer until the next meeting. The Authority will be looking to staff, Kurt
Kimball and Daryl Delabbio, for suggestions on this issue.

Support Services

An Engagement Letter of Agreement for legal services was presented by Dick Wendt of
Dickinson Wright, PLLC.

Motion: David Frey, supported by Birgit Klohs, moved to approve the Engagement
Letter of Agreement with Richard A. Wendt of Dickson Wright, PLLC, for legal services
as presented and to authorize the CAA Chairperson to sign on behalf of the Authority.
Motion carried.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
April 18, 2000 — Page 4

10.

Mayor Logie referred members to the proposal for Interim Support Services prepared by
staff.

Motion: David Frey, supported by Joe Tomaselli, moved to approve the interim support
services as presented for Administrative Services, Financial Services, and Construction
Oversight. Motion carried.

Release of State Funds
Motion: Birgit Klohs, supported by David Frey, moved to authorize the CAA
Chairperson and legal counsel Dick Wendt to take such steps as are necessary to arrange

for the release to the Authority of the State appropriated funds. Motion carried.

Selection of Bank to Serve as Custodian of Funds

Steve Heacock suggested that Bob White (City of Grand Rapids) and Dave Waichum
(Kent County) do some research on five or six banks and make a recommendation at the
next meeting.

Dale Sommers noted that this discussion is related to a bank to be used as a depository,
not necessarily for investment purposes. He wondered if not having a depository
available might delay the release of the State funds. It was suggested that possibly a
committee of two Board members could be appointed and authorized to select a bank as a
depository prior to the next meeting.

Lew Chamberlin and Steve Heacock will review the recommendations of staff as soon as
they are available and make a decision on a depository. '

Selection of Bookkeeper

Kurt Kimball reported that the Transition Team has discussed the selection of a
Bookkeeper. It has been determined that both the City and the County have the capacity
to carry out this function. Darrel Delabbio noted, however, that the Transition Team did
feel it might be best to have an independent bookkeeper for the Authority.

Mayor Logie indicated that the entities being brought together under this Authority are
currently City operations so, in his opinion, it behooves the Authority to use the City as
the Bookkeeper, at least in the short-term, until an independent bookkeeper is decided
upon.

David Frey agreed with using the City as bookkeeper in the short-term. Birgit Klohs
agreed but suggested a deadline be set for hiring a bookkeeper. CIiff Charles suggested
setting a limit on the number of proposals the Authority would review for a bookkeeper.

Staff are directed to put out a Request for Proposals and bring back no more than five
proposals with a recommendation for the Authority to review.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
April 18,2000 — Page 5

11.

12.

13.

14.

Plan for Working Capital

Bob White explained that, on July 1, certain assets will be transferring to the Authority.
There is a $1 million capital reserve and a $3 million operating reserve that will be
transferred from the Arena. However, SMG holds a six to eight-week reserve for
payment of bills that would not be transferred immediately.

Dick Wendt indicated that, in order to have working capital available until July 1, the
Transition Team recommends that the Authority request the Downtown Development
Authority to advance a portion of the operating reserves, possibly $100,000.

Motion: David Frey, supported by Birgit Klohs, moved to request the Downtown
Development Authority to immediately advance $100,000 of the Van Andel Arena
operating reserves to the Convention/Arena Authority to be used as working capital until
July 1 when the remaining funds will be transferred. Motion carried.

Errors and Omissions Insurance Coverage

Dick Wendt noted that staff are looking into whether $2 million coverage for the
Authority can be added to the City’s or the County’s plan. After discussion, it was
decided that staff should also get proposals for $5 million and $10 million coverage.

Motion: Joe Tomaselli, supported by David Frey, moved to authorize staff and legal
counsel to take steps to put a 82 million insurance binder in place immediately and to
move forward with acquiring proposals on 85 million and 310 million coverage to bring
back to the Authority for review. Motion carried.

David Frey asked that each Board member receive copies of the coverage once it is put in
place. Dick Wendt indicated that he would see that copies were distributed.

Project Status Report

Dale Sommers reviewed the project status report as presented in the meeting materials.

Building Committee

David Frey reported that the Building Committee, as currently set up, is meeting on an
as-needed basis. The Committee is waiting for some additional information and then will
be making some significant decisions in relation to the project. The project is on a tight
time frame. Their goal is to complete this project on time and on budget.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
April 18, 2000 — Page 6

Motion: Lew Chamberlin, supported by Joe Tomaselli, moved the following resolution:

WHEREAS, the Bylaws of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
(the “CAA”) provide that the Board of the CA4 may by resolution designate one or more
committees to advise the Board,; and

WHEREAS, prior to the establishment of the CAA, the City of Grand Rapids, Kent
County and Grand Action established a building committee related to the planning,
development and construction of a new convention center; and

WHEREAS, the Board has determined to establish a building committee of the Board (the
“Building Committee”) and to describe its duties and functions.

RESOLVED:
1. That the Building Committee is established.
2. That the duties and functions of the Building Committee shall be to assist and

advise the Board in the planning, development and construction of a new
convention center.

3. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith shall be and the
same are hereby rescinded to the extent of such conflict.

Motion carried.

Dick Wendt explained that the Bylaws of the Authority provide that committee
appointments are made by the Chair of the Board.

Steve Heacock indicated that he feels that Grand Action and the Building Committee
have done tremendous work to date on this project, and he doesn’t want to see us lose any
momentum. The following are the appointments to the CAA Building Committee:

David Frey, Committee Chairperson
Birgit Klohs

Marty Allen

Bill Cole

Daryl Delabbio

Jim Gray

Dianette Hight

Kurt Kimball

Jim Leach

Rich MacKeigan

Don Maine

Jon Nunn

Dale Sommers

John Canepa (ex officio)
Robert Hooker (ex officio)



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
April 18,2000 - Page 7

15.

16.

17.

Budget Presentations

The budget information was provided with the meeting materials for members’
information and review. Kurt Kimball indicated that the plan is to allow time at the next
meeting for discussion and questions regarding the budgets. Staff will be looking for
adoption of the budgets at the next meeting so they can then be brought to the City and
County Commissions for approval prior to the start of the new fiscal year on July 1.

Rich MacKeigan, General Manager for the Van Andel Arena and Grand Center, and Bob

White, Assistant City Manager for Fiscal Services, will act as resources and should be
contacted with any questions members might have prior to the next meeting.

Award of Construction Contract

Bill Cole reported that bids were taken for the relocation of the street lighting and City
telecommunications network in Monroe Avenue in anticipation of the trunk sewer
reconstruction. It is recommended that the CAA award the construction contract to DVT
in the amount of $624,608.

Motion: David Frey, supported by Steve Heacock, made a motion that:

1. The construction contract for street lighting and City telecommunications work in
connection with the Convention Center project be awarded to DVT in the amount of
$624,608 with a total estimated budget of $768,400; and

2. The CAA Chairperson be authorized to execute the contract documents in a SJorm
approved by legal counsel on behalf of the CAA; and

3. The City Engineer be authorized to negotiate any necessary change orders in
connection with the scope of work and to execute the same upon approval by the
Grand Rapids City Manager and the Kent County Administrator or their designees,
provided that any necessary change orders will not result in exceeding the total
estimated budget amount.

Motion carried.

Assignment of Contracts with Grand Action

Motion: David Frey, supported by Steve Heacock, moved to authorize the CAA
Chairperson and legal counsel to undertake all action necessary to have the following
agreements (inlcuding both obligations and benefits) assigned by Grand Action to the
CAA:

- Architectural Services Agreement with Progressive AE for architectural
services through schematic design

- Engineering Services Agreement with Black & Veatch for design and
engineering services related to utility relocation

- Three (#4288, #4301, and $4309) agreements with Material Testing
Consultants, Inc., for environmental testing and boring



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
April 18, 2000 — Page 8

18.

19.

- Letter of Agreement with Erhardt-Hunt, a joint venture, for pre-construction
management services

- Construction/Budget Advisor Agreement with Dale H. Sommers

- Technical consultant letter agreement with James P. Gray

Motion carried.

Authorization for Black & Veatch to Proceed with Construction Engineering/Inspection
Phase Services

Bill Cole reported that it is recommended that the CAA authorize Black and Veatch to
proceed with Construction Engineering/Inspection Phase services in connection with this
project.

Motion: Birgit Klohs, supported by Joe Tomaselli, made a motion that:

1. Black & Veatch be authorized to proceed with Construction Engineering/Inspection
Phase services in connection with the work for the street lighting/electrical and
telecommunication ducts and cables at an estimated cost of $58,000 with a total
estimated budget of $67,600; and

2. The CAA Chairperson be authorized to execute the change order to the agreement in
a form approved by legal counsel on behalf of the CAA; and

3. The City Engineer be authorized to negotiate any necessary change orders in
connection with the scope of work and to execute the same upon approval by the
Grand Rapids City Manager and the Kent County Administrator or their designees,
provided that any necessary change orders will not result in exceeding the total
estimated budget amount.

Motion carried.
Contract with Geotech, Inc.

Bill Cole reported that telecommunication facilities in this area are the City’s primary
feed for various City buildings along Monroe Avenue and Ottawa Avenue. Geotech,
Inc., has specialized knowledge of the City’s telecommunication system and has
previously provided such services for the City. It is, therefore, recommended that the
CAA enter into a contract with Geotech to perform this work.

Motion: David Frey, supported by Steve Heacock, moved that:
1. The CAA enter into a contract with Geotech, Inc., to perform the work related to the
installation of the telecommunications cables in the duct system at an estimated cost of

8139,160 and with a total estimated budget of $159,100 for the project; and

2. The CAA Chairperson be authorized to execute the contract in a form approved by
legal counsel on behalf of the CAA; and



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
April 18, 2000 - Page 9

20.

21.

22.

3. The City Engineer be authorized to negotiate any necessary change orders in
connection with the scopé of work and to execute the same upon approval by the
Grand Rapids City Manager and the Kent County Administrator or their designees,
provided that any necessary change orders will not result in exceeding the total
estimated budget amount.

Motion carried.

M/WBE Policy for Construction Contracts

Bill Cole reported that it is recommended that the Authority follow the City’s Minority
and Women Business Enterprises (M/WBE) Policy and Administrative Guidelines in
relation to construction contracts.

Motion: David Frey, supported by Birgit Klohs, moved that the CAA require that the
Minority and Women Business Enterprises (M/WBE) Policy and Administrative
Guidelines of the City of Grand Rapids, as shall be amended from time to time by the
City, be applied to construction contracts related to the new convention center. Motion
carried.

Role of City-County Building Authority

Dick Wendt reported that the County has pledged $75 million from the Hotel/Motel Tax
and a bonding will need to take place by them to finance this portion of the.project. We
don’t know the timing on this yet. There will be more information on this at a later
meeting.

Steve Heacock reported that the County Treasurer is already looking into this so that
there is no delay in the bonding process.

Future Business

Mayor Logie indicated the list of items that will be coming to the Board for action in the
coming months. Members should contact staff if they have any questions or input on any
if these items in the interim. '

Steve Heacock noted that he will be sending out a request for member information—
preferred mailing addresses, phone numbers, fax numbers, etc. Items he has noted for the
next agenda include:

Budget discussions (need discussion and education prior to adoption)
Depository (report by committee and decision)

Bookkeeper (report from staff)

Secretary/Treasurer (discussion and appointment if necessary)

Mr. Heacock thanked Kurt Kimball, Daryl Delabbio, Jon Nunn, and other staff on the
Transition Team for their pre-work in coordinating this first agenda.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
April 18, 2000 — Page 10

23.

24.

25.

26.

/nlm

Meeting Schedule

Mayor Logie indicated that he feels monthly meetings will be needed at least in the
beginning. He offered to take calls from Board members to try to coordinate 2 monthly
meeting date that will afford the greatest likelihood of getting all members together ona
regular basis.

Steve Heacock agreed that monthly meetings will be needed at first. He feels a regular,
two-hour meeting time should be reserved whether we use all of that time or not. Birgit
Klohs noted that the beginning or end of the day are usually best.

Preferences for meeting times should be called in or faxed to Mayor Logie over the next
week.

Public Comment — None

Executive Session
Motion: Birgit Klohs, supported by Joe Tomaselli, moved that the Authority recess in

order to meet in Executive Session to discuss a matter of property acquisition. Motion
carried.

Reconvene & Adjourn

Mayor Logie reconvened the meeting at 2:20 p.m.

In response to a request from Lew Chamberlin, Steve Heacock indicated that staff would
put some information together regarding the Open Meetings Act and conducting business

in a public setting.

There being no other business, the meeting was adjourned at 2:22 p.m.

Mayor John H. Logie
Acting Chair



Key definitions:

4/28/00 RAW
GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY ITEMYV.
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

OPEN MEETINGS ACT
Act 267 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1976, as amended

"Public Body" means a local legislative or governing body, including a board,
commission, committee, subcommittee, authority or council which is empowered by
state constitution, statute, charter, ordinance, resolution, or rule to exercise governmental
or proprietary authority or perform a governmental or proprietary function.

"Meeting" means the convening of a public body at which a guorum is present for the
purpose of deliberating toward or rendering a decision on a public policy.

"Decision" means a determination, action, vote, or disposition upon a motion, proposal,
recommendation, resolution or order on which a vote by members of a public body is

required and by which a public body effectuates or formulates public policy.

MEETINGS OF PUBLIC BODIES

GRAPIDS 61448-2 94154

All meetings of a public body must be open to the public and be held in a place available
to the general public.

A person attending a meeting of a public body has the right to tape record, videotape or
broadcast live on radio or television the proceedings of a public meeting.

A public body may establish reasonable rules and regulations in order to minimize the
possibility of disrupting meetings.

All decisions of a public body shall be made at a meeting open to the public.

All deliberations of a public body constituting a quorum of its members shall take place
at a public meeting except as otherwise provided in the Act.

A person attending a public meeting cannot be required, as a condition of attendance, to
register or otherwise provide his or her name or other information.

A person is permitted to address a meeting of a public body under rules established and
recorded by the public body.

A person may not be excluded from a public meeting except for a breach of the peace
actually committed at the meeting.

A public meeting does not include a meeting which is a social or chance gathering or
conference not designed to avoid the Act.



PUBLIC NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETINGS

A meeting of a public body may not be held unless public notice is given in accordance
with the Act.

The public notice shall contain the name of the public body and its telephone number
and address.

The public notice shall be posted at the public body's principal office and at other
locations considered appropriate by the public body (including cable television).

Annual regular meetings must be posted within 10 days after the first regular meeting in
each calendar or fiscal year. If there is a change in the schedule of a regular meeting, it
must be posted within 3 days after the meeting at which the change is made.

All regular or special meetings must be posted at least 18 hours before the meeting.

If a meeting is in recess for more than 36 hours, to reconvene, the meeting must be
renoticed at least 18 hours in advance.

A public body may meet without notice in emergency session in event of a severe and
imminent threat to health, safety or welfare upon approval of two-thirds of the members
of the public body determining that delay would be detrimental to efforts to lessen or
respond to the threat.

PROVIDING NOTICES OF PUBLIC MEETINGS

Upon request, and upon payment of a yearly fee of not more than the reasonable
estimated cost of printing and postage, any person or other entity is entitled to receive by
first-class mail a copy of any notice of a public meeting required to be posted.

Upon request, at the same time a public notice of a meeting is posted, a public body is
required to provide a copy of such notice to any newspaper published in the state or any
radio or television station in the state free of charge.

CLOSED SESSIONS

GRAPIDS 61448-2 94154

A public body may meet in closed session upon the following vote:

1. To consider dismissal, suspension or disciplining of or to hear complaints or
charges brought about, or to consider a periodic personnel evaluation of a public
officer, employee, staff member or individual, if the named person requests a
closed hearing - majority voice vote.

2. For strategy in negotiation sessions connected with the negotiation of a
collective bargaining agreement if either party requests a closed session -

majority voice vote.

2-



3. To consider the purchase or 1933% f__)_f real property up to the time an option to

. . . e T
purchase or a lease is obtained & two-thirdsoll call vote.

A

4, To consult with its attorney regarding trial or settlement strategy in connection
with pending litigation (if an open meeting would have a detrimental financial
effect on the litigating or settlement position) - two-thirds roll call vote.

5. To review the specific contents of an application for employment or
appointment to a public office if the candidate requests the application remain
confidential (however, all interviews of a public body for employment or
appointment to a public office must be held in an open meeting) - two-thirds roll
call vote.

6. To consider material exempt from discussion or disclosure by state or federal
statute, i.., matters subject to attorney/client privilege - two-thirds roll call vote.

° A separate set of minutes of the closed session must be taken by the recording secretary
or person designated by the Board at the closed session. These minutes shall be retained
by the recording secretary, are not available to the public and shall only be disclosed if
required by the Court in a civil action. The minutes may be destroyed one year and one
day after approval of the minutes of the regular meeting at which the closed session was
approved.

MAINTENANCE OF MINUTES

° A public body is required to keep minutes of each meeting showing the date, time,
place, members present, members absent, decisions made and the purpose or purposes
for which a closed session was held.

° The minutes are required to include all roll call votes taken at the meeting.

° Corrections in minutes must be made not later than the next meeting after the meeting to
which the minutes refer.

° Corrected minutes must be available no later than the next subsequent meeting after
correction.

° Corrected minutes must show both the original entry and the correction.

° Minutes are public records open for public inspection and shall be available at the
address designated on posted public meeting notice.

° Proposed minutes must be available for public inspection not more than 8 business days
after the meeting to which the minutes refer.

° Approved minutes must be available for public inspection not later than 5 days after the

GRAPIDS 61448-2 94154

meeting at which the minutes are approved.

3-



COMMENCEMENT OF LEGAL ACTION INVOLVING ALLEGED VIOLATIONS

The Attorney General, County Prosecutor or any person may begin a civil action to
challenge the validity of a decision of a public body made in violation of the Act.

A decision of a public body may be invalidated if a court finds that non-compliance or
failure to comply with the Act has impaired the rights of the public.

Action must be commenced within 60 days after the approved minutes are made
available to the public, except if the decision involves the approval of a contract, the
receipt or acceptance of bids, the making of assessments, the issuance of bonds or other
evidence of indebtedness or the submission of a borrowing proposal to the electors, such
action must be brought within 30 days after the approved minutes are made available to
the public.

In any case where legal action has been commenced, the public body may, without
being deemed to make an admission contrary to its interest, reapprove the disputed
decision in conformity with the Act.

SANCTIONS FOR NON-COMPLIANCE WITH THE ACT

GRAPIDS 61448-2 94154

A civil action to compel compliance or to enjoin further non-compliance.

If a public body is not complying with the Act, and the person commencing legal action
is successful, the person shall recover court costs and actual attorneys' fees.

A public official found intentionally violating the Act is guilty of a misdemeanor
punishable by a fine of not more than $1,000 for the first offense and not more than
$2,000 or imprisonment for not more than one year for the second violation.

A public official who intentionally violates the Act may be found civilly liable for actual
and exemplary damages of not more than $500 plus court costs and actual attorneys'
fees.

A civil action where damages are sought must be commenced within 180 days after the
date of the alleged violation.



ITEM VI

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
DATE: May 16, 2000

TO: Board of Directors
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

FROM: Dick Wendt, Legal Counsel

SUBJECT: Establishment of Finance Committee and Operations Committee

Background: The Bylaws of the Board provide that it may designate committees by resolution
of the Board. Chairperson Heacock has indicated his desire to create a Finance Committee and
an Operations Committee to assist and advise the Board. After their establishment, the Bylaws
provide that the Board Chairperson appoint committee members and select the chairperson.
Recommendation: Adoption of the attached resolution establishing the Finance Committee and

the Operations Committee and generally describing their respective duties and functions. After
establishment, the Board Chairperson should appoint the committee members and chairpersons.

GRAPIDS 61448-1 94945



GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING FINANCE AND OPERATIONS
COMMITTEES AND DESCRIBING THEIR RESPECTIVE DUTIES AND
FUNCTIONS

Boardmember , supported by Boardmember ,
moved the adoption of the following resolution:

WHEREAS, the Bylaws of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
(the "CAA") provide that the Board of the CAA may by resolution designate one or more
committees to advise the Board; and

WHEREAS, the Board has determined to establish a finance committee (the "Finance
Committee") and an operations committee (the "Operations Committee") of the Board and to
describe their respective duties and functions.

RESOLVED:
1. That the Finance Committee and the Operations Committee are established.
2. That the duties and functions of the Finance Committee shall be to assist and

advise the Board regarding the financial affairs of the CAA.

3. That the duties and functions of the Operations Committee shall be to assist and
advise the board in the operations of CAA facilities.

4. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith shall be and the
same are hereby rescinded to the extent of such conflict.

YEAS: Boardmembers

NAYS: Boardmembers

ABSTAIN: Boardmembers

ABSENT: Boardmembers

GRAPIDS 61448-1 94944



CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned duly qualified and acting Chairperson of the Grand Rapids-Kent
County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA"), do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true
and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board of the CAA at a regular meeting held on
May 24, 2000, and that public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to and in compliance
with Act 267 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1976, as amended.

Dated: May 24, 2000

Steven R. Heacock
Chairperson

GRAPIDS 61448-1 94944



VAN ANDEL
ARENA

City
of
Grand
Rapids

VAN ANDEL ARENA

Operating Budget
For Fiscal Year 6/30/2001

* Financial Highlights

* Statement of Income

*

Indirect Expense Summary

*

Management Fee

*

Capital Projects
* Event Summary
* (Cash Forecast

* Salary Allocation

GMe>

An SMG Managed Facllicy

ITEM VILA



VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
BUDGET - YEAR ENDING 6/30/01

HIGHLIGHTS

Event income s expected to come in ahead of current fiscal year
forecasts. This increase is from the continued support that the
Arena has received, as well as, non yearly events like the Western
Regional Hockey Championships that will be held during March
2001.

Other operating income and indirect expenses are expectad to
remain consistent with previous years. Indirect expenses will
increase in the coming year by approximately 4.6%. Overall the
Arena is expected to generate over S1.2 million in revenue above
expenses for the 2001 fiscal year.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF INCOME
BUDGET - YEAR ENDING

6/30/01

Jun-01 ACTUAL/EST.

CHANGE
TOTALS 6/30/00
# OF EVENTS 163 156 7
EVENT OPERATING INCOME:
DIRECT EVENT INCOME 1,303,22 1,078,728 224,495
ANCILLARY INCOME:
FOOD & BEVERAGE 1,110,632 1,034,171 76,461
NOVELTY 190,537 220,301 (29,764)
PARKING - . .
CATERING 90,518 116,903 (26,385)
OTHER 37,621 18,962 18,659
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 1,429,308 1,390,337 38,971
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 2,732,531 2,469,062 263,469
OTHER OPERATING INCOME:
ADVERTISING INCOME 517,255 502,511 14,744
INTEREST INCOME 90,000 89,829 171
TICKET INCENTIVES 74,850 71,645 3,205
LUXURY SEATING 810,000 800,919 9,081
MISCELLANEOUS 113,454 111,400 2,054
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 1,605,559 1,576,304 29,255
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 4,338,090 4,045,366 292,724
INDIRECT EXPENSES:
EXECUTIVE 99,061 93,393 5,668
FINANCE 141,461 138,073 3,388
OPERATIONS 1,043,202 1,030,031 13,171
MARKETING 152,070 150,877 1,193
BOX OFFICE 125,614 112,137 13,477
LUXURY SEATING 104,707 84,413 20,294
SKYWALK 32,895 32,960 (63)
OVERHEAD 1,382,858 1,296,534 86,324
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 3,081,868 2,938,418 143,330
NET FACILITY INCOME (LOSS) 1,256,222 1,106,949 149274
LESS CAPITAL RESERVE (546.363) (530,450) (15,913)
ADJUSTED INCOME (LOSS) 709,839 576,499 133,361




VAN ANDEL ARENA
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
BUDGET - YEAR ENDING 6/30/01

Salaries & Wages
Wages - Parttime
Automobile
Payroll Taxes
Union Expenses
Employee Benefits
Peasion

Salaries Allocated

Total Labor Costs

Advertising
Contracted Cleaning
Contracted Security
Bank Service Charges
Small Tools
Marketing Fund
Ammortization

Dues & Subscriptions
Meals & Entertainment
Equipment Rental
Exterminating
[nsurance
Landscaping & Windows
Local Taxes
Management Fee
Meetings, Conventions, & Training
Operation Vehicles
Postage

Printing & Stationary
Professional Fees
Repairs & Maintenance
Box Office Expenses
Snow Removal
Supplies - Office
Supplies - Operations
Telephone

Trash Removal

Travel

Computers

Parking

Utilities

Allocated Expenses

Total Materials & Service

Total Indirect Expenses

2001
Budget

835,838
552,676

(769,336)

T 973,165 _

25,000
24,000
190,000
6,000
3,200
40,000
23,558
3,400
3,500
11,600
3,600
253,436
10,000
6,000
332,436
20,000
600
12,000
30,000
23,000
128,500
13,600
750
12,000
188,200
52,000
14,000
12,500
25,000
16,000
660,000
(38,603)

2,105,275

-

3.083,440




VANANDEL ARENA - GRAND RAPIDS
MANAGEMENT FEE CALCULATION
BUDGET - YEAR ENDING 6/30/01

DESCRIPTION OF CALCULATION

The management fee is composed of two parts, the Base Fee and the Incentive Fee.
The base fee is $254,616, adjusted for an expected 2.5% increase in the CPI-U. The
incentive fee is calculated at 20% of the first $500,000 of revenues in excess of

the benchmark and 25% of any revenue increase in excess of $500,000. The
incentive fee can not exceed the base fee in any given year. The benmark is
$3,988,797, adjusted for an expected 2.5% increase in the CPI-U.

MANAGEMENT FEE CALCULATION

FY 2001 FY 2000
BUDGET ACT/EST

BASE FEE $260,981 $254,616
INCENTIVE FEE

Revenue $4,338,090 $3,988,797

Benchmark Revenue $3,988,675 $3,891,390

Projected Revenue Increase $349,415 $97,407

TOTAL INCENTIVE FEE $69,883 $19,481

TOTAL SMG FEE $330,864 $274,097




VAN ANDEL ARENA
CAPITAL PROJECTS
BUDGET - YEAR ENDING 6/30/01

Capital Improvements

Building

Security - Intercom & Buzzer System 18,000

Security - Gate System for Lobby 18,000

Refurbish Suites 100,000 136,000
Machinery & Equipment

HVAC Upgrades 20,000

Box Office Speaker System 10,000 30,000

Total Capital Request 166,000

e st
————]



£90'690'T 1E$°TCL'T R0C°6TH1 129°Le L£5°061 R15°06 7890111 ot (165'185) MIR'PRR'T 006'C6L 01 0SL'LRR [v]] SIVAOL GNYUD
90T'%1C ves'lol [ 000'L L' 00s'1L 9rL'091 9rL'8C 000°ZT1 . 0st'(y 91 ASHN WO
[TANTE] T o8t . 09Y'stl osP'Hl osi'oty 9I0'LLS 910'1¥ 000795 ¥ 000’049 nos" 194 ol SHIELINGD
gIp'LTS Tit'eo9 f18°6kC . LE8FC bis'o Ler'sic F6L'TSE (oLe'Lil) yoT 1Lk 006'FLT'E 000'0%1 1" SAONS ANV IVIOL
$9L'88 £60'66 Siv'9C - - SIv'T 000'vT ' wy'tl 000'sS 000'009 000"t ol ANV
6LL'YS 990'88 016'Sk - 015’9 00L 00L'8€ 9s1°Tk 916'11 orT'ot 000°2ST 000'81 £ SSOILNOLON
059's8 989'IL 058'(C - osi’s 0oL 006'LT 9r38°Le 916'11 026'ST 000’912 000'81 Y NN GLLSNOW
- 809'v1 50T - sit 8 059"l 95$°'Tl 95$°T 000°01 000'S¥ 000°'C 4 SNOVIVAS WHNVZZIN
vLY'9Y $6H'0S sii'st . 0681 0st SL3'W 08¢C'ST (0c9'sl) 000'pF 00L'+91 00T'Tl e M:HaoN
ror'ss 026'8S Ls'at - Lyt oor'l 00$°8 CrC9PY il 000°$€ 00$°T8L 00$°8 ] .01 NO SNOBINVIHLD
LLL's9 Lv'oL sti'st - s01'9 39L s T6T'sS 391°8 Py 00L°T6E oot'al I 3121 NO SUVLS
981 (1A $$8°9 - - 01 osL'9 (214 (3144 000'T 000'09 ono'y H SOMNEMNS
€20'1Z 108°'Ls SLR'HT - - st 0008 926'8T (res'st) 005104 000'2tS 000°2C b HINO AHINSIO
1T L86'91 o' 001'C wr 008°9 sto't (s3e'R) 00€'91 000°rL 000°r | SWH LRI
(31433 216'TY 06ty - - 99'1 00€'TY $$6'81 (972°18) 081°104 000'9LS 000’ B SO
L9T'68L prSors LLE88S FIb'9¢ 0Lo'te R8L"VY 1133214 V1414 (CBL(ss) 0ss'sty 000°650'1 000'TRY 1 SLUOAS IVIOL
8U'C . - - - : 01,2908 AOOCINI
619'Cs! 143 g 24 (3121 - 056'61 69L osLvC (8C'LY LHS'N 008'0% 000"06¢ 000'tl H ONFLLSHUAN TVNOISSHEO0WE
LLs'vl 9r9'IL 0t0'LE - 080'C (1144 00s'1¢ 919°¥¢C (vac'ss) 000’024 000'08T 000'11 [ AHNOOH DN TION
13134 us's - - 9 osT's £o'e s’y 00s'L 000°0L 000°L \ TIVHLEINS YU TI0)
Lol 1w Lyc'L - . Trs STR'9 s10's1 $10'C 00021 000'6¥ 000'L T INSSY LY NN IO
9¢9' I ¥99°61 TiL's uL's - - - s6'c! (26C'8%) pre'e9 - 000'L ] FIVILLOO:] VRV HDVEIN VI
80Kt 96¥°9¢ oo0L'st oov’l 00C're 9oL'01 (+0t'6) 000°0T 000'0L ouR'ol ) NOSVASHI BN
Ls1'6l . - - NOSV:SING VIIN
oLt'6ov $48 144 €29°68¢ oL'oc - 1¥8'€¢ 080's2¢ 8Ts'8¢C (8Ls'110) 901°0$¢€ - ovn' 1ot o AHNOON SN
911'et 89L°vTL $96'19 - - 2411 0r8°'9§ r08'T9 (966'6¥1) 008'T1T - 0T'ts L1 TIVHEANSVH SHH001
104 1300nu |AUYTTIONY | AMYTTIONY | JWOONI JWOINI JOVUIATU FINOINI IWOINI JWOONI FANSAHY  [JINVUNILLLY | SINSAG ANGIAY
ANIAY INSAY - IV.LOL WHHLO ALTJAON | ONINILYD ¥ 004 INAA SHOIAMAIS | TV.LNDU XEL J3IN FULSNUNL ON
000 Al 100T Ad 1A

AUVINAINS INGIAH




0600052 000°05C 000°05¢ 000'05¢ 000'05Z 000052

(9zz'psa)  (9o1'vic)  (£96'6EC) (L5€°Lc2) (4454} 20€°59Z 1GZIEY 20C°€LD 82¢'88L [ WAY 986'916 vZy'LIG 000°000°}
{000'089)  (000'so9)  (000°0SS) (0oo's6¥) (0o0'owy)  (000°s8E) (000’oce)  (0oo'szz)  (ooo'0zz) -(000'S9 1) (ooo'ory)  (ooo'ss) -
000°'00S'  000'00S't  000°0§Z'F  000'0SZ’} 000'000°t  000'0SL  000'00S  000'0SZ  000°0§Z - - - -
(oov'scy) (oov'azs)  (oo¥'129) (oov'vi)  {oov'z08)  (00¥'00G) (oov'ces)  (oov'9ol)  (oo¥'669) (000'125) (ooo'vo9)  (000'2SL) (000’050}
(000'02) (000°02) (000’02} (000°02) (000'02) (000'02) (000°02) {000'02) {000'02) (000'02) (000°'02) {o00°02) (000'0v)
(osa'sz)  (lose'ze).  (ose'sd) {ose'ez)  lose'sa)  {ose'we) (osg'zz)  lose'12)  (0s8'Gl) (osc'st)  (os8'6H) (ose"12) (0s9'22)
{ooo'szy)  {ooo'sey)  (ooo'szy) (oco'szy)  (ooco'szy)  (ooo'sey) (0o0'szy)  (ooo'sey)  {oou’szy) (coo'sz¥)  (ooo'szy)  (ooo'szv) (o00's52¥)
{ooo'oc)  (ooo'oc)  (ooo'oc) {ooo'oc)  (ooo'oe)  (ooo'oc) {ooo'oc)  (ooo’'oc)  (oo0°0E) {000'0E) (000'0¢) {oo0'0oc)  (ooo'ot)
(oo0'0o¥)  (ooo'oor)  (0o0'oov) {oo0'o0y)  (000’cov)  (000"0OP) (000'00%)  (000%00¥)  (009'LKS) {oo0'0or)  (ooo‘ooy)  (ooo'oo0¥) (000’00%)
(c00'0s2) (ooo'osz)  (ooo'ose) {co0'0s2) (000'0sZ)  (000°052) (000’0s2)  (0o0'0s2)  (000°0S2) {oog'osz) (ooo'osz)  (000'0S2) (000'sL1)
6LL'S 6eL'L 669'6 659'LL 619'Ct 645'S) 6€5'LL 66+'61 65¥'LT (8474 6L€'SC (14 662’62
000’0y 000°0¥ 0000V 000’0 000°0Y 000°0V 000°0% 000'0¥ 000°0¥ 000°0% 000°0% 000°0Y 000’0V
010'8S -010'9L 010'v6 010°Z1t 0i0'0El 0i0'sbt 010’09} 010'¥8} 01020z  0I0'0ZZ  0M0'¢e olo'or 010'8S
000°'SZ 000°SZ 000'SZ 000°'SZ 000°'SZ 000'SZ 000°'SZ 000°'s2 000°5Z 000'ST 000°SZ 000°$Z 000'5Z
118'8S 96999 86€'cst S0L'SET oLi’eze 60L'9S1 088°122 108°9G} 012’004 [ZARRT poc’' LY cLT'ott 000°'vZ
91591 ceL'sot £91's91 . c8l's9t £81'691 [ ]85 19 to1’s9l - 18 18 coL'soL [X: %313 coL’s9l €8sl celL’sol
£oo°6Y0  BGOGIL  CTGL6  0SSGSL pIZ6IL 296’998 tpC'ybL  0L8'CL9  099°6ZS 1L'vey 90€'289 124'L08 95C’109
ooL's ooL's + 0OL'S 00L'S 00L's 00L'S 00L'S 00L'S 00L'S 00L'S 00L'S 00L'S 00L'S
co0'cy®  BGECLL €222 0SO'CHL pis'ciL 202’109 1yo'9EL  0/1°999  09G'CIS 100°6ZY 000°0L9 1Zr'100 950'605

NAP AV ydv YUYW 834 NV El] AON 100 d3S ony nr NP

153 1s3 153 is3 153 183 153 153 is3 1S3 183 1S3 153

VAU (S L) S TNCINAV LI

SONINUVE (EINIVLEIY

123Y10 OIVd SISNIJXI

ALID OL SNVUL INNINTY

11D AG 123U GIAIEOTY INNIAIY
VD NILUIVALIND A

AWOINT CERELEEKT

SLISOJAN ATINVANV
S1IJINIU YOOV
SUINUYIIV WIHLO
TIOUAVJ YOIV
SIWIVAVI (MDY

SIMUVAVY UIILO

XV1 S3IIVS/ TIOUAVY

TOUINOD dv
AIVAV S.LIOIV

SLHO LOVULINOD AV
S13SSV JIUVONVLINI

y3iiLo
JONVUNSNI
aivd3dd

UMILO UV

VOREIWY 3IAUIS UV

JOULNOD UV
FTUVAIRDTY SLNNODJDV

JONVIVU HSVD VIOL
1SV AL
ONILVUIIO OL N0 UIHLO

ONIVUERIO
HEVO

VGG 2\l Yim SuoyoESUEBJ) Sed pajeunisa Guipniou)
133HS 3ONVIVE a3LSVOIYOI

VNIUVY TIANV NVA



Van Andel Arena
Allocation of Common Staff
Budget - Year Ending 6/30/01

This page outlines the allocation of personnel who have responsibilities for
the Grand Center and VanAndel Arena. In order to maintain two separate
sets of accounting records, there needs to be an agreement on the sharing
of some common expenses. These allocations have been reviewed as part
of the budgeting process, and at this time no change is recommended.

Grand Center Arena
Position Allocation Allocation
General Manager 33% 67%
Director of Marketing 50% 50%
Director of Operations 67% 33%
Director of Finance 50% 50%
Facility Maintenance Manager 50% 50%
Box Office Manager 30% 70%
Bookkeeper 50% 50%
Human Resources 50% 50%
GM Secretary 33% 67%
Marketing Admin. Asst. 67% 33%

Receptionist 50% 50%




ITEM VILB

GRAND CENTER

Operating Budget.
For Fiscal Year 6/30/2001

* Budget Overview

* Budget Highlights

* Income Statement

* Indirect Expense Summary
* Management Fee

* Capital Budget

* Event Detail

* Staff Allocation

SME>

An SMG Managed Faclilty




Grand Center - Grand Rapids
Budget Highlights
Year Ending 6/30/01

HIGHLIGHTS

Event income for the fiscal year 2001 is expected to fall short of the fiscal

year 2000 level. This is mainly due to the loss of two events that in the past have
been on the yearly calendar, as well as, the exceptional fiscal performance of
fiscal year 2000. With the loss of the Meijer Food Fair and the Gordon Food
Service events the Grand Center will have to make up §100,000 in event income.
We anticipate filling these event days, however, revenue generated by these new
events will more than likely fall well short of the revenue these two events
generated.

Other operating income and indirect expenses will continue to perform
consistent with past years. The overall performance of the Grand Center is
expected to be very strong again with over $86,000 in revenues above expenses
for the fiscal year.




Grand Center - Grand Rapids

Budget Highlights
Year Ending 6/30/01
2001 2000
Budget Estimated/Act

Event Income 2,198,163 2,317,108
Other Income 89,000 85,458
Indirect Expenses (2,200,378) (2,205,496)
Operating Income 86,785 197,070
Events
Arena

Sports 0 0

Performance events 24 23
Arena Total 24 23
Theater

Ballet 14 15

Opera 4 6

Broadway 56 62

Symphony 45 44

Concerts/Other 14 17
Theater Total 133 144
Other Facilities

Exhibition Hall Events 95 90

Clubs, Dances & Parties 1 7

Corporate Banquets 24 26

Seminars/Speakers/Meetings 99 93

Public Shows 50 59

Civic/Graduations 1 0

Testing 2 4
Other Facilities Total 272 279
Total Events 429 446




GRAND CENTER - GRAND RAPIDS

INCOME STATEMENT

BUDGET FISCAL YEAR 2001

“FY 2001

FY 2000

JOTAL EST/ACT VAR,

EVENT OPERATING INCOME

DIRECT EVENT INCOME 1,466,636 1,574,645 (108,009)
ANCILLARY INCOME .
FOOD & BEVERAGE 321,362 303956 17,406
NOVELTY 22,730 22,023 707
ARTCRAFT 241,550 271,380  (29,830)
EQUIPMENT 145885 145,104 781
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 731,527 742,463  (10,936)
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 2,198,163 2,317,108 (118,945)
OTHER OPERATING INCOME
INTEREST INCOME 32,000 31,591 409
TICKET INCENTIVES 31,000 30,339 661
EQUIPMENT RENTAL 20,000 18,155 1,845
OTHER INCOME 6,000 5,373 627
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 89,000 85,458 3,542
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 2,287,163 2,402,566 (115,403)
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 52,745 52,610 135
MARKETING 118,529 110,775 7,754
FINANCE 132,653 136,478  (3,825)
OPERATIONS 810,822 817,538  (6,716)
BOX OFFICE 70979 73815  (2,836)
OVERHEAD 1,014,655 1,014,280 375
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 2,200,378 2,205,496  (5,113)
NET FACILITY INCOME (LOSS) 86,785 197,070 (110,290)




p—

Grand Center
Indirect Expenses Summary

Year Ending 6/30/01
2001
__ Budget

Salaries & Wages 701,308
Wages - Parttime 1,045,430
Automobile 12,250
Payroll Taxes 155,868
Union Expenses 65,313
Employee Benefits 76,565
Pension 21,957
Salaries Allocated (1,301,960)

Total Labor Costs 776,731
Bank Service Charges 7,500
City Allocation 6,000
Advertising 10,000
Box Office Expense 250
Dues & Subscriptions 2,500
Entertainment/Meals 1,500
Equipment Rental 2,500
Facility Equipment -
Insurance 175,000
Local Taxes 3,500
Management Fee - Base 174,005
Management Fee - Incentive 46,152
Meetings, Conferences, & Training 16,100
Postage 2,500
Printing & Stationary 6,000
Professional Fees 17,500
Purchased Services 103,700
Repairs & Maintenance 106,000
Supplies - Office 7,500
Supplies - Operations 148,000
Telephone 35,000
Travel 3,950
Computers 60,000
Parking 14,000
Utilities 474,000
Bad Debt Expense 500

Total Materials & Services 1,423,657
Total Indirect Expenses 2,200,388



Grand Center - Grand Rapids
Management Fee Calculation
Year Ending 6/30/01

Description of Calculation

The management fee is composed of two parts, the Base Fee

and the Incentive Fee. The base fee is $174,005 adjusted for an
expected 2.5% increase in the CPI-U. The incentive fee is calculated
at 20% of the first $500,000 of revenues in excess of the benchmark
and 25% of any revenue increase in excess of $500,000. The
benchmark is $2,204,320 adjusted for an expected 2.5% increase

in the CPI-U.
FY 2001 FY 2000
Budget Act/Est
Base Fee 174,005 169,761
Incentive Fee
Revenue 2,287,163 2,402,715
Benchmark Revenue 2,056,403 2,006,247
Projected Revenue Increase 230,760 396,468
Incentive Percentage 20% 20%
Total Incentive Fee 46,152 79,294

Total SMG Management Fee 220,157 249,055

|




Grand Center - Grand Rapids
Capital Projects
Year Ending 6/30/01

Capital Improvements

Building

Balcony "Rail" Devos Hall
Furiture/Fumnishings

Re-Rig Design Devos Fire Curtain 18,000

Replace Portable Stage Decks 25,000
Machinery/Equipment

Refurbish Steinway Grand Piano

Total Capital Request:

45,000

43,000

15,000

103,000



Thscrzel | 9vG6oo't | 9RSSIS' sso'lor ooelcz | o0soz oLl 43 a  (veece) ree'se6  060'I2C ur ’ VIV NOIIINX - W01
1292 585'99¢ 952°6.4C 0z0'sY 008'CL - 06C°LS ) T Tieeren) T seceer | 09526 143 W10 W10L
96r'st ric'el oLe're osv'os [T1X3 - [TT4Y] (oze'2) 005°L9 098°1C 09 SCimanW ¥ sieupuas
yoL'z 912'99 0v0's L szt 0s9'c - 0$s°9 {s96'9) str'sy 0s6'LL 61 ArmiuyysIPuues
soz'y 0v9'99 oreoL ozL'y 00S°L - 0Z0°6¢C - (L9v'y} $20'TT oos's H ojesotio)
(1244 [] 0s2°'T 00S - - - - {os¢c) 001°C 00Z'L 1 suojenpesD
{og0'r1} 131343 714 . - . - . {osc) s29 114 3 sooueg
TL8'T (344} 1z0'9th oo0z'st . - orv'os - (160'ct) Tr'ey ooc'ze 61 onbueg
{sce) [$134 z10'Y . . - . - [(713] [ 11N 4 002 T Oupsey
(oL6's9) otz'oly orz'vor 00202 [ 1X14 osY's 006'Y 0s¥'sE T92°T 9LL'9LT osc'ort oS SMOHS 2110Nd V101
grc’ol 89Z'0Y 9¢9°0S osb'y 009'C - - 000'% ovL [IX14 005°CT [ SMOYS 11and "IN
(1ce'z) 9ov'ol sL0'8 00Z't 000'Z - - - - si8'y | 000°C 14 sojnqol ¢ sAol
(Lcr'y) ¥60°'S 159'c oS 2 - . 00§ [({73] ooL’c 004°s T siywjuy
¥5$°'S ¥sL'9L 80¢'Z8 ooL's 0s8’y . 002 000'6 8sS 000’99 000°L1 9 mous 1vog
(s9L'y) saL'y (] odx3 ssouisng
wr'e 56’y |4 243 oor's . osy - 00T oIS’ €99'9 004°L S ojagIMONS NI
(sez'c) 695°'v8 96Z'10 006’ 005’61 - oss'y 000°2 ere' ooo'sy * 00092 v Mmoyg 18 MoN
(1se'se) 15c'sC [} Moyg oIy wio)snd
(090°1¥) 090'ty [] . . uopnqsia 9 BuIs$9204 POOI
o9L'se o9L'st 005°s 005'9 000's . 00S 09Z’t 000°ST 008°L 14 UOWOM
(oce’s) 0£6'6 0 £3[u0N2013
(os2'82) [t 424 ] suopeayddy 3 moindwod
§22 )] 70959 09L'Y9 059°C 0$S°S . 113 000’7t o1y's 000°LC 00022 [ vopeosooy 3 spooY Bujuods
we'e sTS'L 966’6 00C'Z 0004 . - 0sZ (rsz) ooz'L osL'y ¢ smoys Buippom
teLc'e) 969'79 L1L'SS 1144 000°L - - 000'L 196°L 000°LC 000°YZ ¥ uvopseD ¢ OWOH
l650'0 L) 151°C90 760'26L $C9'ST 006'YL} 009 LLy'99 STY'9l (es6'zT) c18'0ZS 051’98 [ SMOHS30VUL/SNOIINIANOD V101
(z66"12) Zov'eT olr's 008's B - - ooy (or6} os1's 000°C {3 SMOLSOpRI] IS
[ 0 0 ssoujsng [ruojBey
(r6¥'s) 9r1'99 75909 008 00094 - 000°L - 59’9 000'0¢C 008°9 4 ssoujsng j5207
({13 Lys'oor 096'004 006 000'CY - - os'9 {oc0's) 000°9S 000’9 4 DupsoMpooM
9cz'y riv'ol 0s9°'rt 000°% 00$'t . 00S°4 - {oso't) ooL's 00S°t [4 FI3LTY
65641 288°2 st o't - - - 009 (sL6) 0s9'ct ooZ's 14 sojaqo)l ¢ shog
0 0 0 ’ uopspodsues]
oot 724(%4 s19'L§ 000°c 00s'y - 009'st 00Z's (s90'2) ool'st 0or's 9 snoi0lioy
1] 1] ] 2O{IIYOA |SUO|)1T0II0Y
$L19'9 00S 000y - - - (oos} (1124 00Z'} z oj193 jvoy

05924 [ 05921 ost't 005'Z . . - (oo2) 00s’8 00s°t 4 yeaniod
! o'y ceL'cy 0s0'sy 000"t 00023 - (1334 - {oze"s) 00$°re 000'¢C [ sep § wnejoned
190's1 [] 190°s4 osL 0ss’s . [ ]%4 0sZ (7144 008’1 009'C z 03¢ WIEOH B I¥IIPOK
{zee's2) Teo'LT 0 . BupmpYnuen
o [} [} Auq
0 0 0 . (e psnpuj
. |owese [] oi'se 0sZ 000°S 0 000°Z4 osL {069'1) 006’8 0001 z Jopsiv|  SOVIYSUIN OWOH
(907'r1) 9s8'cT osY's 0oL 000y 0 0oy’ 0 {ooz} 0s0'c 008 4 WSWAIBAOD
ree's sr0's | 7131} 001 0sL'T 0 oLz 002 [ 1Y) 00Z'TL 00T [4 Ausnpu] jesoung
(vi0'ss) 090'9Z1 9Y0's9 008'C 006'L1 0 001 0 324 szo'oy 0098 9 vopinqsig 8 Buisse301d pood
ooL's 00L'9 osL 008’2 [} 0 ost {oor) 006'C 008 4 elvwionog g pooy
(109'2e) 99L'SL $91'9¢C osy'L 00Z's [} [ 006 {scv's) 000°Z¢ 000t [3 QINYININUoK B BIMINdpOLY
(eze't) [7443 (] 1880 ¥ (voUsU)d
[} [} 0 BupoouiBug
(151°9) 980'cYt ££6'9C} ozr's 00¢'LZ 008 0s¢’9 059 (sos'0} $T1'66 008'st 91 vopeanp3
[E19% £4) nuTie 96¥'s sTL 00$ ] 009 ] (233} esL'y 00z 3 jrueq
o 0 0 ouemsse(D 7 YUUD
(9r6'1) 919's¢C oL9'ce (124 oot'L (] 00L 050’4 (szo's} 001°9T 00$'9 14 uaponsucd ¢ Buipling
' (29s's) 660'cZ e’ 006} 00¥°C 0 159’y [ 14 {oor's) 2724 003'c [ ose) sivl 3 Minvog
(956°'02) 956'0Z 0 Bupjueg
zLT'9T 9z1'oL 00r'9C 0s5°s 00s'9 ] 00Z'9 ost {oos'2) 008'2Z 00e's [} suone|d0ssY
e [Y7¥A4) 144 00§ [ ool 006 9y0°L oor's osi's [4 sjvwuy
(czL'vt) 996'yS srz'oy osz't 000’ 0 00¢ 0s6 tsse's) 000'r¢C ooz'y [ Bujuue g 3 osmnoudy
0002 AJ 100Z Ad INOONI 3NOONI IWOONI 3WOINI 3NOINI INOONI INOINI JONVG SIN3IAZ STIVH LIgIHX3

FONYIIVA | SWOONI IWOONI  |ININJINDA 13VHOLNY  AXIFAON  DNISLYD JOVHIAIE  3DIAHIS IVINIY -NALLY 30 ON
JUELE] AN3AI QONY 0003 13N

10/0€/9 ONIONT ¥VYIA

SIN3A3 4O 3INA3HDS
$OIdVY ONVYO - YILN3D ONVHO



SOIdVE ONVYD - ¥3LN3D ONVYD

(£so'sls) | zeE'esc'e $91°864°Z 980'S¥) 0SS'¥T [ I%%] 10Z'3CT §51°06 ros'cy LY’y 08L'YSS ezy SONIGHNS TV - V0L
10c's 9LT'LL9 115'729 1y 0s9'c 099'0Z o'z 09c'9T 96429 o00p'9CY (TR 1S4 HSVAMTIVH SOAZ0 - V101
(zov'ch) [ 11411} 100°T08 1659 059°C 0£9°’9 004 092’0 ose'L 00769 oor'ze 24 S1N3A3 HSI3M OSIN
113 zer'o9 01§09 0s9°9 008’c ooy osz't ols’ok 006°SC 000'sZ 14 SIN3A3 SOA30 OSIN
¥50'sZ 09r'29t ris'Lol ost'st - osL'e - oso'y r96°0 000°ZS) 00099 sr ANOHJNAS ¥9
Liv'ol yze'Lo el 009's . 005°C ore 050’8 109'sy 0s9'111 000°'y8 95 ainNo 3YLVIHL AVMAVOYE
(eLs'es) cie'sy orz'e 0$9'¢ 3 . . 059 o't 006°0Z 00Z'L 14 vY3d40 ¥
(ez)'c) 661'69 120’99 06C'9 - - 004°L 0012 1ES°6 058'9Y 00¢€'91 [ 137IVA Y9
6661 AJ 000T A3 INOONI  IWOONI  IWOINI IWOONI  INOONI  3IWOONI INOINI  JONVO SIN3A3 VNIYVY HST13WIVH SOAIT
FONVIMVA |  INOONI JWOONI  {ANIMJINDI 1JVHOLINY ALTIAON ONI3LYD 3IIV3AID FNAYIS IVANIY  -N3IUV 40 ON
JUELE] IN3A3 GNY 0004 13N
$0/0C/9 ONIONS ¥VIA
S1N3A3 40 3TNAINDS




Grand Center
Allocation of Common Staff
Budget - Year Ending 6/30/01

This page outlines the allocation of personnel who have responsibilities for
the Grand Center and VanAndel Arena. In order to maintain two separate
sets of accounting records, there needs to be an agreement on the sharing
of some common expenses. These allocations have been reviewed as part
of the budgeting process, and at this time no change is recommended.

Grand Center Arena
Position Allocation Allocation
General Manager 33% 67%
Director of Marketing 50% 50%
Director of Operations 67% 33%
Director of Finance 50% 50%
Facility Maintenance Manager 50% 50%
Box Office Manager 30% 70%
Bookkeeper 50% 50%
Human Resources 50% 50%
GM Secretary 33% 67%
Marketing Admin. Asst. 67% 33%

Receptionist 50% 50%




000ZA4 YO ALID OL SINIWAVJ HSVD QILVNILS V101

000'GLY

- - - 000'0S - - 000°00L 000°00¢ 000'S.  000'GL  000'SL

196'8G1  68c'gcl  859's6  (196°L1) (0zo'eyt) (98g'1zh) (GL6'6¥L) (Swe'bse) (655152 (s10'664) (690'26) (000'SE)
(000°s2S) (000'0¥S) (000'00S) (000°09Y) (000'0Lt) (000'sse) (000°00€) (000°SH2) (000'002) (000'0zl) (000'S) (000'OV)
000'SLy 000'SLy 000'SLY 000'GLb  000'Seh 000'SZF  000'SZy  000°SZE  000'SeZ  000°0G4 000'SL -
(000'0ct) (000'0s4) (000'0S4) (00O'OVL) (000'szt) (000'061) (000'06L) (000'061) (000'so1) (0oo'0zt) (000°064) (000°0LL)
(000'02) (000'02) (000'02) (000°02) (000's2) (000'0g) (000's2). (000'02)  (000°02) (000'02) (000's2)  (000'02)
(0o0'el) (ooo'zy) (ooo'os) (ooo's) (000'2)  (000'02) (000'61) (000'81) (000'21) (000'9l) (000°'st)  (000'Eh)
(000'002) (000°sz2) (000'002) (000°002) (000°052) (000'052) (000'00Z) (000°00€) (000'0s€) (000'0s2) (000°052) (000°0L2)
(0oo'st) (ooo'sz) (ooo'sz)  (000°0F) (000'08) (000's2) (000°02) (000'02) (000'0c) (000'02) (000'8L)  (000°9Y)
(000'e)  (000'9)  (000'9)  (000'9) (000'9) (000'9)  (000'9)  (000'9)  (000'9) {o00'9) (0009}  (000'9)
(000'sz1) (00o'szh) (000'sLi) (000002) (000'0st) (000'081) (000'0S4) (000'081) (000°0LY) (000'0L1) (000'0E1) (000'0OSH)
000'¥ 000'9 000'8 000'0L  000'ZL 000’  000'SL  000'8L  000°02 000t  000'€CZ  000'0%
000'l€  000'Cr  000'vS  000°99  000'L 00068 000°001 00C'ELl 000'b2L 000’05  000'89  000°08
000't,  000'9F  000'9E 000’02  000°L} 000'9Z  000'Zh  000'9S  000°0E  000'0% 000'S 000°'G1
00'¥t  000'€CZ  000'CL  000'SE  000'VE 000'8€  000'6C  000'0Z 00002  000°¢C 000'0L 0002}
000'S6  000'08+ 000'0ZL 000°0S}  000°58i 000'sgL  000'OFL  000'G6L  000'06 0000  000°08! 000'002
6EC'VEZ 11917 IYE'¥ET 196'0ZE  020'9vy 98800V G16'82¢ SPL'90S 6GS'009 §L0'Z9S  690°0Y¥  000'CO¥
ooL't ooL't 00L't ooL't ooL't 00L'L ooL't ooL't 0oLt 00L't ooL't ooL't
6£9'262 LI6'6LZ 2p9'ZET  L9T'6IE  OZEWKY 9B1'66€ SLZ'l2€ SYO'SOS 6S8'86S GLE'09S  69T'HEY 00E' L0V
aNnr AV ydv HYW EE] NVF 030 AON 100 d3s ony nfe

and ang ang ang ang ang ang ansg ang and ang ansg

ALID WOU4 (S1d1303Y) SIN3WAV L3N

SONINYVYI GaNIv.LIY

ALID AB A1LO3MIA Givd SISN3IX3
ALID O1 Q3LLINSY SONNS

"dvI NI QIVJ/ALIND3

S11SOd30 FONVAQY
S1133N38 YOOV
NOISN3d YOIV
SIVNYIOV Y3IHLO
TIOYAVd YOIV
SITBVAVd QINYIIV

S$378VAVd ¥3HIO

XV1 S3VS/ 1T0UAVdD

TJOYLNOD dv
378VAVd S.L00V

SLOVYINOD INIVN
JONVUNSNI
Qivd3aud

YIHLO YV

LIVUDLYVY ¥V

AVMIAY dvY

TOULINOD ¥V
31gvAIZ303Y SINNOJIV

JONVIVE HSVD TV10L

HSVD ALl3d
ONILYY3dO
HSVD

AnD 3y yim suondesue)) ysed pajewnsa Guipnipul
100Z A4 133HS 3ONVIVE @31390and

Y3.LNID ANVYHO



ITEM VII.D

GRAND CENTER EXPANSION AND RENOVATION

Source of Funds

Federal Funds 1,500,000
State Funds 65,000,000
County Funds 75,000,000
City/DDA Funds 15,000,000
Grand Action 30,000,000
Other * 13,500,000

Total Project Budget ' . $200,000,000

*Presently working on requests and other Grants at Federal/State Level. At time of
Bonding a firm Project Revenue will need to be established by Authority.

The Construction Manager will provide in December 2000 a Design/Development
Estimate that will establish more detail.



Location:

Site:

Size:

Functions:

Grand Rapids Convention Center
Fact Sheet — (with Phase Timelines)

The Grand Center is located on Monroe Avenue between Lyon and Michigan Streets in
downtown Grand Rapids. Bordered on the west by the Grand River and on the south by the
Welsh Auditorium, skywalks link the center south through downtown hotels and offices to
the Van Andel Arena.

Convention center site covers approximately 13 acres. Expansion occurs north of DeVos
Hall, on the site of the current parking ramp, Hall of_Justice and Police Headquarters.

e Realigned Monroe Avenue is designed as a more “pedestrian friendly” street leading to
Monroe Mall and the entertainment district

e Riverfront is enhanced with a public promenade facing the Gerald R. Ford Museum.
Lower riverwalk will continue under Gillett Bridge to Michigan Bridge

e Creation of a new River plaza at the Grand Gallery

Approximately 1,000,000 square feet of total gross floor area:

Renovation — 150,000 square feet

New Additions — 850,000 square feet

Building occupies — 10.5 acres, or size of 14 football fields
Building Height — 80 feet

Roof span at Main Exhibition Hall — 360 feet

Grand Gallery - a public lobby, skylit space linking the Grand River to Monroe Avenue and
onto Calder Plaza. 60 feet wide, 450 feet long and 75 feet high — links all the major
components of the Center.

Exhibit Hall — 165,000 square feet, column-free, dividable into (3) 150 x 360 foot halls, each
the size of a football field. This yields 1000+ 10 x 10 foot exhibit booths.

e Ceiling heights range from 35 to 70 feet

e Floor load capacity equal 500 pounds per square foot, with power, water, and
communications recessed into the floor

e 12 enclosed loading docks, accessed off Michigan Avenue

e Truck ramps provide drive-on access to the hall

Ballroom — 40,000 square foot sub-divisible space, adjacent to the Exhibit Hall (combined, the
Ballroom and Exhibit Hall provide 200,000 square feet of Class A exhibition space)

e Banquet seating capacity of 4,000
¢ Welsh lobby the Ballroom’s grand entrance

Meeting Rooms — 35,000 square foot sub-divisible

Food Service Facilities — 25,000 square foot banquet kitchen and concessions within the exhibit
hall




ITEM VII. E

SESQUICENTENNLAL
DATE: May 16, 2000
TO: Steve Heacock

Chair — Convention/Arena Authority

FROM:  Robert White// 949"
Assistant City ager — Fiscal Services

SUBJECT: Authority Operating/Capital Budget
First Fourteen Months Ending June 30, 2001

The attached two tables provide a summary overview of the anticipated financial
activities of the Convention/Arena Authority for the first fourteen month operating period
ending June 30, 2001. These statements incorporate the Facility Manager’s
operating/capital replacement request as submitted to the Authority Board on April 28,
2000.

Statement A summarizes the FY2001 operating budget proposal of the Facility Manager
as consolidated with the Authority’s financial statements. In summary, the two facilities
are expected to generate operating revenues of $6,625,253 with offsetting disbursements
for direct operating expenses (more fully defined in the notes to Statement A) of
$4,032,211 and a minor capital replacement allowance of $269,000, leaving a “net
available to the Authority” of $2,324,042.

This balance is then carried over to Statement B, which contains a summary of the
anticipated first fourteen months financial activity as follows:

e The Authority will establish three subfunds, including an operating account, a capital
replacement reserve, and a capital construction account.

e It is expected that the State will release $35 million of the total $65 million pledged to
the project during the upcoming fiscal year.

e The Authority will maintain the past practice established by the City/DDA and
continue the direct payment of utility billings for the convention and arena facilities.
The utility portion of the budget is estimated at $1,134,000 for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2001.

C:\My Documents\CONVENTION FACILITIES\05160001.doc



e Under terms of the existing SMG contract, the Facility Manager will continue to draw his
management fees (monthly installments) from the facilities management contract accounts
and will invoice the Authority on an annual basis for release of incentive fees. The formula
for calculation of incentive fees is contained in the facilities management contract and is
payable upon submission of an audit following the conclusion of each fiscal year.

¢ Administrative activities during the first fiscal year (fourteen month) of the Authority are
expected to be minimal in nature. The initial budgetary allowances include $100,000
intended to provide for legal/bookkeeping/auditing services, insurance premiums,
City/County staff services and “other” miscellaneous expenses. This budget allowance
assumes the County and City will not seek reimbursement for staff services to be provided
from inception through December 31, 2000.

On the basis of the budget submitted by the Facility Manager and with additional information as
described in these financial statements, it is anticipated that the Authority will retain a $4 million
fund balance at June 30, 2001, including a $3 million set-aside for operating reserve and a §1
million set-aside for capital replacement reserve.

I recommend adoption of the attached financial statements with authorization granted to incur up
to $1,300,035 for operations and $36 million for capital construction.

RIW/kim
Attachments
cc: Kurt Kimball

Daryl Delabbio
Dave Waichum

C:\My Documents\CONVENTION FACILITIES\05160001.doc



05100001.xls

Operating Revenues:
Events
Suites/Premium Seats
Advertising
Other

Direct Operating Expenses:2
Labor
Base Management Fee
Insurance
Security
Other

Excess
Less: Capital Replacement

Net Available to Authority:

NOTES:

STATEMENT A

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
FACILITIES MANAGEMENT CONTRACT
NET AVAILABLE TO THE AUTHORITY
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2001

May 10, 2000

VAN ANDEL

ARENA'

$ 2,732,531
810,000
517,255
278,304

4,338,090

978,165
260,981
253,436
190,000
669,403

2,351,985

1,986,105

166,000

$ 1,820,105

GRAND

CENTER'

$2,198,163

89,000

2,287,163

776,731
174,005
175,000

554,490

1,680,226

606,937

103,000

$ 503,937

__TOTAL__

$6,625,253

4,032,211

2,593,042

269,000

$2,324,042

'Summary of SMG proposed operating/capital replacement budget recommendations as submitted
to the Authority Boad on April 18, 2000.

2Direct Operating Expenses" excludes operating expenses incurred for utilities and Facility Manager

Contract - incentive fees which will be paid from the Authority operating account.



05160001.xIs

Fund Balances, beg. of year

- Additions:
Initial (7/1) DDA Transfer
State Participation
Net Available to Authority’
Facility Capital Transfer?

Deductions:

New Construction

Direct Pay Utilities

SMG Incentive Fees

Administration:
Legal/Bookkeeping/Auditing
Insurance (D & O)
Staff Services
Other

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

STATEMENT B

FUND STATEMENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2001
May 10, 2000
CAPITAL
OPERATIONS  REPLACEMENT _ CONSTRUCTION TOTAL
$ - s =TS -7 -
3,000,000 975,000 - 3,975,000
- - 35,000,000 35,000,000
2,350,035 (25,993) 2,324,042
(1,000,000) - 1,000,000 -
4,350,035 949,007 36,000,000 41,299,042
- - 36,000,000 36,000,000
1,134,000 - - 1,134,000
116,035 - - 116,035
40,000 . - 40,000
13,500 . . 13,500
36,500 - - 36,500
10,000 - - 10,000
1,350,035 - 36,000,000 37,350,035
$ 3000000 $ 949,007  § - $ 3,949,007

Fund Balances, end of year

NOTES:

The "Net Available to Authority" is allocated first to the Operations account in an amount sufficient to maintain
an anticipated $3 million minimum reserve with the balance allocated to the Capital Replacement reserve.

2The first of ten annual transfers from the Operating Reserve to the Capital Construction sub-fund by the C/AA
in fulfillment of a City/DDA pledge toward the project budget.



FISCAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT ITEM VIl

Stephen Duarte, Deputy Director of Support Services

5

Kent County Administration Building 300 Monroe Avenue, N.W. Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503-2289
Phone: (616) 336-3974 e Fax: (616) 336-3598 e e-mail: sduarte@admin.co.kent.mi.us

May 17, 2000

Mr. Steven Heacock

Convention Arena Authority Chair
300 Monroe Avenue N.W.

Grand Rapids, MI 49503

Dear Steve:

Pursuant to the direction of the County Administrator/Controller, I directed staff to secure a
binder of insurance for Directors and Officers Liability (D&O) Insurance with a policy limit of
$2,000,000 covering the Board of Directors (Board) of the Grand Rapids-Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority (Authority). The binder was issued with no prior acts exclusions
effective April 25, 2000. The actual policy has not been received yet, however it will be
forwarded for review by legal counsel as soon as it is received.

In addition to obtaining the above binder, price quotes for policy limits of $3, $5 and $10 million
were solicited. A tabulation of the price quotes is attached. The price quotes were reviewed and
based on published information for these types of claims, it was the staff’s professional
recommendation that a policy limit of $5,000,000 appeared adequate. I concur with that
recommendation.

In addition to the D&O coverage, the staff has requested price quotes for general liability
insurance to cover Board members as well as any staff or volunteers of the Authority with a
policy limit of $1,000,000 with a $5,000,000 umbrella. The quotes for this coverage will be
forwarded to you for Board consideration as soon as they become available.

I will plan on attending the next Board meeting to answer any questions that may be raised.
Sincerely,

Dl

Stephen Duarte
Deputy Director of Support Services

Attachment



FISCAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT

Phil Van Dyke, Risk Coordinator

—

Kent County Administration Building, 300 Monroe Avenue, N.W. Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503-2289
Phone: (616) 336 - 2519 o Fax: (616) 336 - 3598 e e-mail: pvandyke@admin.co. kent.mi.us

April 27, 2000

Steve Duarte
Deputy Director of Support Services

RE: Directors & Officers Liability Insurance for the
Kent County - Grand Rapids Convention/Arena Authority (Authority)

Directors and Officers are fiduciaries entrusted with the management of an organization. Should
a breach in fiduciary responsibility occur and result in loss to the organization, they can be held
personally liable. To protect directors and officers from personal loss, it is a common business
practice to purchase Directors & Officers Liability Insurance.

At your direction, an application for D& O insurance was submitted to insurance broker Arthur J.
Gallagher & Company of Michigan, Inc. on April 18, 2000. Cost quotations for D& O coverage
were requested for the seven Authority board members. In addition, the eleven Authority “staff
members” were listed as employees on the application. However, A.J. Gallagher has subsequently
informed that D&O insurance does not cover the staff members since they are not making
decisions on behalf of the Authority.

On April 26" A.J. Gallagher presented the following premium pricing options from Chubb
Insurance:

Limit Premium Deductible
$ 2,000,000 $ 5,300 $ 5,000
$ 3,000,000 $6,700 $ 5,000
$ 5,000,000 $ 8,800 $10,000
$10,000,000 $13,500 $10,000

On April 26, 2000, pursuant to your direction, I requested that A.J. Gallagher bind coverage as
soon as possible for the $2,000,000 policy limits. Also, I requested a specimen policy so that a
review of coverage, exclusions, and policy language could be completed to ensure that the
appropriate insurance protection is in force.



A binder for the D & O insurance with policy limits of $2,000,0000 has been issued effective
April 25, 2000, with no exclusion for prior acts. The limits on this policy can be adjusted at any
time. While ultimately the Authority members will have to decide on the D & O limits they are
comfortable with, it is my professional judgement, based on published information for these types
of claims, a policy with coverage limits of $5,000,000 appears adequate. I would like to remind
you that this is a highly specialized area of risk exposure and you may want to consult with
someone who focuses in this type coverage if anyone thinks the Authority’s risks are atypical.

Sincerely,
Phil Van Dyke /

Risk Coordinator



ITEM X.A

Information regarding banking for the Convention/Arena Authority to
be presented by Steve Heacock and Lew Chamberlain at the committee
meeting on May 24, 2000.



ITEM X.B

| CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS

DATE: May 4, 2000

TO: Steve Heacock
Chair, Convention/Arena Authority

FROM: Robert White )})
Fiscal Services [pirector

SUBJECT: Convention/Arena Authority
Proposal to Provide Bookkeeping Services

Subsequent to the first meeting of the Convention/Arena Authority, I met with Dave
Waichum, Finance Director of Kent County, for the purpose of attempting to identify the
work requirements related to bookkeeping activities of this Authority. Together we
determined that it would be difficult to quantify the work activity related to these services
given the fact that prior to the first Authority meeting no such entity existed.

What we have chosen to recommend is, as an alternative to the solicitation of a long-term
bookkeeping services agreement through issuance of Request for Proposals, a single
negotiated agreement with Beene Garter LLP. I met with Peggy Bishop from Been
Garter and reviewed with her the various Articles of Incorporation, Agreements, and
Bylaws already approved. In addition, I reviewed with her my understanding of the
anticipated activities of the Convention/Arena Authority over the next 14-month time
period extending through June 30, 2001. I requested a proposal from Beene Garter for
the provision of accounts payable processing, preparation of monthly financial
statements, and year-end financial services intended to prepare consolidated financial
statements of the Authority incorporating the Facility Manager contract financial
reporting with the direct financial activities of the Convention/Arena Authority.

The attached letter from Peggy Bishop dated May 2" provides the response to my
solicitation for a quotation concerning the provision of bookkeeping services to the
Convention/Arena Authority. This proposal, if accepted by the Authority Board, would
establish a bookkeeping relationship with Beene Garter LLP for an approximate 14
month time period through June 30, 2001. The fees quoted within this communication
appear to be reasonable.

Beene Garter LLP provides bookkeeping services to a number of non-profit entities in the
community. They are also familiar with governmental accounting principles/reporting

C:\My Documents KK\05040002.doc




requirements. I believe they are fully qualified to undertake this activity on behalf of the
Convention/Arena Authority Board. Dave Waichum and I would recommend acceptance of the
proposal from Beene Garter LLP.

RIW/km
Attachment
cc: Dave Waichum

Kurt Kimball
Daryl Delabbio

C:\My Documents\KK\05040002.doc



BEENE GARTER LLP
$0 MONROE NW
SUITE 6§ 00
GRAND RAPIDS
M I CHIGAN
49503-2679

May 2, 2000

Mr. Robert White

Grand Rapids-Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

300 Monroe, NW

Grand Rapids, Ml 49503

Dear Bob:

Beene Garter LLP is focused on having the right tools to help our clients
become the leading organizations of the future. We have set our sights on
meeting the needs of your organization in the next century. By selecting
Beene Garter LLP, you will be served by a well-recognized certified public
accounting firm that thoroughly understands the challenges an organization
such as yours encounters.

Thank you for this opportunity to provide a proposal for professional services
to Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (CAA). We hope
that this proposal conveys the level of energy, technical expertise and
commitment that our staff will bring to this engagement if chosen as your
independent accountants and consultants. Our objective throughout the
engagement will be to establish a relationship that yields tangible benefits to
CAA. In other words, we want to make a difference for you.

Beene Garter LLP has worked diligently over the past 50 years to develop
the resources and experienced staff that an engagement such as this
requires. We are a dedicated, enthusiastic team with unparalleled
commitment to our clients. We have assembled a highly qualified group of
team members to serve the needs of CAA. Members of this team have a
vast array of experience not only with audit, single audit, and tax issues
relating to nonprofit and government organizations but we also -serve as
consultants and advisors to our clients in this very specialized industry. We
know that our team will provide top-notch service to you — our goal is to
exceed your expectations.

Enclosed please find a brochure describing some of the outsourcing services
offered by our Client Accounting Services Group. Beene Garter LLP offers a
menu of services that you can consider when determining which of your
accounting functions to outsource.

BUSINESS ADViSORS > CPAS > FINANCIAL SERVICES
INTERNATIONALLY KNOWN AS MOORE STEPHENS BEENE GARTER PLC

T 616.235.5200

F 616.235.5285

1.800.824.7882

www.beenegarter.com



Accounts Payable

Accounts payable processing is a function that, when performed by an
outside service, can save your staff time and effort and be quite cost
effective. We recommend that an organization produce checks twice per
month. Beene Garter LLP will produce the accounts payable checks using
invoices approved for payment and coded for expense distribution by your
staff. The invoices will be keyed into our system, checks will be produced
and matched to the invoices. The package will then be delivered to your
office (with a $7.00 delivery fee) for signature and mailing. As an additional
control, we recommend that the bank statement be sent directly to Beene
Garter LLP for reconciliation.

Financial Statements

We will produce monthly, compiled, cash basis financial statements.
Statements are produced within ten business days of our receipt of the bank
statement, copies of receipts and documentation of any unusual
transactions. We will return the bank statement and any enclosures to you
when the reconciliation has been completed, along with copies of the
compiled financial statements.

Payroll

It is our understanding that CAA will not have employees in the near future.
We would be happy to discuss payroll services if that becomes necessary.

The above services will be handled by our Client Accounting Services
department at the following hourly rates:

Staff level $ 74
Manager level $ 92*
Partner level $ 218**
Clerical $ 62***

*  Anticipated monthly manager time - 15-30 minutes
**  Anticipated monthly partner time - 15 minutes
**  Anticipated monthly clerical time - 15-30 minutes

While the current accounting activity of CAA is expected to be relatively low,
we realize that will change quickly. We feel Beene Garter LLP is positioned
to help with your growth. We understand that you are looking for an initial
relationship to extend through June 30, 2001. Because we expect a longer-
term professional relationship to develop, we are willing to absorb the initial
setup of accounts payable and the financial statement format as our
investment in this relationship.

" BEENE GARTER LLP



Year-end Services

We understand that effective July 1, 2000 the contract with SMG for the Van
Andel Arena and the Grand Center will now come under CAA. The monthly,
cash basis statements referred to above will not include activity from these
two activities. At the end of the year it will be necessary to consolidate the
financial statements prepared by SMG for the Grand Center and the Van
Andel Arena with the monthly statements for CAA. In addition, the CAA
financial statements must be converted from the cash basis to the accrual
basis of accounting.

These services will be performed by members from our accounting and
auditing department at the following hourly rates:

Partner level $ 218
Manager level $ 150
Senior level $ 107
Clerical $ 62

We are also available to assist in year-end audit preparation by providing
whatever client assistance is required by your auditor.

We appreciate your interest in exploring outsourcing as a solution to your
accounting and financial reporting needs. We look forward to hearing from
you, and we welcome the opportunity to serve Grand Rapids-Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority. Please contact us at 235-5200 if we may
answer any questions or if you need additional information on which to base
your decision.

Very truly yours,

Beene Garter LLP
Your Partner in Service to the Community

" BEENE GARTER LLP



Beene Garter's Client Accounting Services (CAS) Team will

focus on your paperwork while you focus on your profits. T T
We work closcly with your business to help make every o Financial SEHuE

aspect of the accounting process run smoothly. With years i » Investment management.

of experience, the CAS team will help you: S .va._ﬁ._:ﬁﬁoqum:n namﬁmn._m..

Increase productivit i
b R A%l _ca,ﬂmﬁ memﬁ_o:.no:mcxﬁm

Improve morale due to reduced employece stiess o, ﬁm: oa. ta?-mrmrnm mna &wa mmaﬁ_ﬂﬂmﬁ ion

Effectively utihize employees gt mcm_zumm.<m_umﬁ_o:.

Decr ses due 1o reduced employee overtime

We Offer Complete Client Account g Services

Financial statement p tion

General ledger mantenance
Bark statement reconciliation
Accounts pe gement
Accor

On-site month-end closing

Fixed asset schoedule mantenan : wn0¢wawzm_MXnmﬁnm0Jm_ m.m.—é.wnm

wmmnm Om:mﬁ LLp Is :.m ﬁmﬂmmmﬁ _:amnmnama_x

9%3 business advisory, CPA and ?%8_ senvices'

firm in West Michigan. When you choose the
edures e mmmnm Garter Client )nnor_ﬁ.sm mmZ_nmw.ﬂmmB.

We Deliver Solutions

" iyou're ._n.:oo.m__,_m mxnmzm sﬁo_ dl n.uw.m.ﬁn?.“

to your needs,

For B.Q.m :...ﬁo_..,au.no:_ n_mmnn no:Snn. .cm”mﬂ
o_m.ﬁm.muoo_ol.moo.mﬁ.qms. ..




B

S321AY3S WIINVYNIJ « SYdD « SYOSIAQY SSINISNg

d17 ¥3134v9 IN3II g

JunLng 3H1 40 sASsaNIsng
404 S100] LHOIY IH]

JIAY3S 9NILNNODJY LNIITD

91d ¥313V9 3IN330 SNIHJILS IHOOW SV NMONN ATIVNOILLYNIILNI

Wwo03°13)4233U23q' MMM 6 L _w T-€E0S6%Y
NVOIHIIW
1884778700871 SQ1dvVyd GNVYO

009 311InNnS
MN 3OYNOW 0S
00ZS'SET'919 L d17 ¥31¥v9 IN3I3E

$8Z6°9€T°919 d

d11 ¥31¥Vv9H IN33g

*$InoA sp Yons sassauIsng
jpunauaidanus Aq paopj saduajpyd
sl pupisiapun oym 3|doad jo

wpal b — wuy papadsal b 3uisooyd
3D noA ‘sadiAIas A10SIApD puD
Sununooop unoA 1oj 4914D%) UIIg
Sunpajes Ag “auminj aya uj pup

Abpo3 — spaau ual> SunvdW Uo

sI Sn>0J 4no g7 4914DS) U3y 1Y



ITEM X.C

CITY OF GRAND RAPRIDS

DATE: May 9, 2000

TO: Steve Heacock
Chair, Convention/Arena Authority

FROM:  RobertJ. White §
Assistant City Magager — Fiscal Services

SUBJECT: Convention/Arena Authority
Financial and Bookkeeping Policy

Attached you will find a recommended set of policies governing prior authorization to
sign Authority checks. This policy statement is intended to balance, what I believe to be,
the Authority’s need to give timely approval for disbursements of monies held in the
Authority depository with their responsibility concerning prudent management of
finances.

This policy statement was reviewed and approved by Dave Waichum, County Finance
Director, Daryl Delabbio, County Administrator, and Kurt Kimball, City Manager.
Together, we recommend adoption of this first policy statement governing financial and
bookkeeping activities of the Convention/Arena Authority.

RIW/kim
Attachment

cc: Dave Waichum
Kurt Kimball
Daryl Delabbio

C:\My Documents\CONVENTION FACILITIES\05090003.doc



CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
FINANCIAL AND BOOKKEEPING POLICY
FIRST DRAFT
MAY 8, 2000

All checks written for payment of invoices submitted to the Authority shall be first approved by
the full Authority Board, with the following exceptions:

Operations:
Based on the Authority’s prior adoption of an annual operating/capital replacement
budget, checks are authorized to provide for payment of:

e Utilities (electric, gas, steam, water/sewer)

e Legal/Bookkeeping/Auditing Services (if within prior contract approval)

e SMG Annual Incentive Fee (as provided in contract)

e Other Miscellaneous Invoices With A Not to Exceed Limit of $3,000
Construction:

Based on the Authority’s prior approval of a project construction budget allowance and
award of contract(s), checks are authorized to provide for payment of:

e Within project site - interim payment invoices as approved by the Owner’s
Representative (currently either/or Jim Gray/Dale Summers)

o Within public right of way — interim progress invoices as approved by the City
Engineer or his designated representative.

Other Provisions:

e The bookkeeper will accept and process invoices, including preparation of checks.
The bookkeeper will accept direction from only one person, as designated in the
Authority Board minutes.

Checks will be written and dated the 14™ and the 28™ of each month

e Checks will be signed by not less than two authorized persons

e The monthly financial report shall include a detailed listing of all checks written,
including name of payee, amount, date, and a brief description of materials
acquired/services rendered.

C:\My Documents\CONVENTION FACILITIES\05090002.doc



